






MINUTES OF A PUBLIC MEETING 
OF THE CITY OF BUNKER HILL VILLAGE  

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
THURSDAY, APRIL 25, 2024 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Vice-Chair Patricia Shuford called the Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting to order at 
5:07 p.m. based on a quorum of members present:  
 
Present      
Patricia Shuford, Vice-Chair 
Michelle Belco, Member        
David Marshall, Member     
Josh Pratt, Member  
Ryan West, Alternate Member (arrived at 5:10 p.m.) 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Gerardo Barrera, City Administrator 
Elvin Hernandez, Director of Public Works  
Loren Smith, City Attorney 
Jennifer Namie, Assistant to the City Secretary 

 Mallory Pack, Management Analyst   
 
 Absent 
 David Light, Chair  
 Louie Crapitto, Alternate  
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT     
 
There were no public comments.    
 

III. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF 
THE OCTOBER 18, 2023, MEETING MINUTES  

 
This item was taken out of order 

 
A motion was made by Board Member Belco and seconded by Board Member Pratt 
to approve the October 18, 2023, meeting minutes.  

 
The motion carried 4 - 0  

 
IV. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST FROM WILLIAM CADE 

WILEY AND WILEY HOMES, LLC FOR AN APPEAL OF THE 
CALCULATION AND/ OR INCLUSION OF THE SQUARE FOOTAGE UPON 
WHICH THE CITY’S BUILDING OFFICIAL USED TO CALCULATE THE 50% 
SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT THRESHOLD AS DEFINED BY CHAPTER 4, 
SECTION 4-81 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES THAT TRIGGERED 
THE APPLICATION OF THE CITY’S FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION 
ORDINANCE AT THE PROPERTY 11722 GREENBAY 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes – April 25, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT AND OPPORTUNITY TO 
APPEAR AND BE HEARD ON THE ITEM LISTED ABOVE 
 
Commission requested a break to allow for alternate Commissioner to arrive. 
 
Vice-Chair Shuford opened the Public Hearing at 5:12 p.m.  

 
Applicant’s Request  
 
Chris Nichols, counsel for applicant/ contractor Cade Wiley, Wiley Homes, presented a 
request for an appeal to the calculation and/ or inclusion of the square footage upon 
which the City’s building official used to calculate the 50% improvement threshold as 
defined by Section 4-81 of the City’s Code of Ordinances that triggered the application of 
the City’s flood damage prevention ordinance and resulted in the issuance of a stop-work 
order for a home remodel project at 11722 Greenbay.  
 
He stated that the project intended to be, and was permitted for, a remodel that affected 
less than 50% of the existing home. During the remodel, walls were temporarily cut open 
to install additional components for the HVAC system. These components were 
necessary to prevent short cycling, which could potentially cause moisture and mold 
issues.  These cuts were not included in the project’s submittal or approval. The City’s 
former Building Official determined that the cuts counted towards the remodeled square 
footage, thus exceeding the 50% substantial improvement threshold. This triggered the 
application of the City’s Drainage and Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, resulting in 
a stop work order issued in May 2022. Mr. Nichols requested that the temporary wall cuts 
made specifically for HVAC improvements not be considered in calculating the 50% 
substantial improvement threshold requirement.  
 
Cade Wiley, President of Wiley Homes spoke reiterating Mr. Nichols’s statement that the 
cuts were needed due to the system being “too much” for the home.  It was outdated and 
needed to be replaced as during the installation, they realized 3 areas of the house would 
not be properly conditioned by the new system.  The additional work increased the 50% 
threshold by 351 square feet. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Jennifer Chang, 11722 Greenbay homeowner, stated that she requested to file an appeal 
after the stop work order was issued in 2022 and was told that an appeal was not 
available at the time. Met with the City in January 2023 and was told again no appeal 
would be granted.  She noted that the resulting situation has created financial hardship for 
her family.  

 
Vice-Chair Shuford closed the Public Hearing at 5:35 p.m. 

 
V. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A REQUEST FROM 

WILLIAM CADE WILEY AND WILEY HOMES, LLC FOR AN APPEAL OF 
THE CALCULATION AND/ OR INCLUSION OF THE SQUARE FOOTAGE 
UPON WHICH THE CITY’S BUILDING OFFICIAL USED TO CALCULATE 
THE 50% SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT THRESHOLD AS DEFINED BY 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes – April 25, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 

CHAPTER 4, SECTION 4-81 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES THAT 
TRIGGERED THE APPLICATION OF THE CITY’S FLOOD DAMAGE 
PREVENTION ORDINANCE AT THE PROPERTY 11722 GREENBAY 
A motion was made by Board Member Pratt and seconded by Board Member 
Marshall to grant an appeal of the calculation and/ or inclusion of the square 
footage upon which the City’s building official used to calculate the 50% substantial 
improvement threshold as defined by Chapter 4, Section 4-81 of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances that triggered the application of the city’s flood damage prevention 
ordinance at the property 11722 Greenbay 

 
Roll Call Vote  
Michelle Belco…………… YES     
David Marshall………….. YES     
Patricia Shuford………… YES 
Josh Pratt.……………….. YES 
Ryan West.………………. YES 

 
 The motion carried 5 - 0 
 

VI.  PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST FROM WILLIAM CADE 
WILEY AND WILEY HOMES, LLC FOR A VARIANCE TO CHAPTER 4, 
ARTICLE 5 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES REQUIRING THE 
LOWEST FLOOR OF ANY RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE TO BE ELEVATED 
TO OR ABOVE THE FIVE HUNDRED (YEAR) ELEVATION AT THE 
PROPERTY 11722 GREENBAY  
 
ALL INTERESTED PARTIES SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT AND OPPORTUNITY 
TO APPEAR AND BE HEARD ON THE ITEM LISTED ABOVE 
 
This item was not needed and was not discussed.  

 
VII.    DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A REQUEST FROM 

WILLIAM CADE WILEY AND WILEY HOMES, LLC FOR A VARIANCE TO 
CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 5 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
REQUIRING THE LOWEST FLOOR OF ANY RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE TO 
BE ELEVATED TO OR ABOVE THE FIVE HUNDRED (YEAR) ELEVATION 
AT THE PROPERTY 11772 GREENBAY 

 
This item was not needed and not discussed.  

 
VIII.  PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST FROM FREDERICK 

WOLFEAN FOR A VARIANCE TO APPENDIX A, SECTION 9.08 OF THE 
CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES AT THE PROPERTY 12123 RHETT DRIVE 
 
ALL INTERESTED PARTIES SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT AND OPPORTUNITY 
TO APPEAR AND BE HEARD ON THE ITEM LISTED ABOVE 
 
Vice-Chair Shuford opened the Public Hearing at 5:46  p.m. 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes – April 25, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 

§ 9.08. Repairs, modifications, and maintenance. 

A. On any nonconforming building or structure, work may be done on ordinary 
maintenance and repair.  

B. On any nonconforming building or structure, the modification or replacement of 
nonbearing walls, fixtures, wiring, plumbing, and similar items shall be allowed 
after the owner thereof or his duly authorized representative has obtained any and 
all necessary permits to perform such work, only under the following conditions:  
1. The cubic content of such building or structure existing at the time it became  

nonconforming shall not be increased; and  
2. The modification of an existing structure involves structural modifications, 

including wall or ceiling board replacement, in rooms constituting no more 
than fifty (50) percent of the climate controlled square footage of the structure; 
provided, however, that this subsection shall not apply to situations where the 
wall board replacement is for the lowest forty-eight (48) inches of the first 
floor of the structure within sixty (60) days of a verifiable water damage event; 
and  

3. The cost of repair or modification does not exceed fifty (50) percent of the 
value of the structure prior to the repair or modification. For purposes of this 
subsection, the value of the structure shall be the average cost per square foot 
of all new construction within the city for the last three (3) years based on 
certified values from the Harris County Appraisal District, as set forth in the 
City of Bunker Hill Village Fee Schedule as adopted by City Council.  

Applicant’s Request 
 

Neil Nesmith, contractor for the remodel project at 12123 Rhett Dr., presented a 
request for a variance to Appendix A, Section 9.08 (2) to the City’s Code of 
Ordinances. He requested to temporarily remove wall board in areas of the home not 
being remodeled to upgrade to a more efficient HVAC system and to bring outdated 
plumbing to the current code for safety standards. He stated that no additional 
renovation work would occur outside the scope of the remodel project.  
 
Frederick Wolfean, 12123 Rhett Dr. homeowner, stated that remodeling the home 
without addressing outdated plumbing/ pipes was not sensible. He explained that the 
purpose of the request is to enhance home safety.  

 
Public Comment 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Vice-Chair Shuford closed the Public Hearing at 5:53 p.m. 
 

IX. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A REQUEST 
FROM FREDERICK WOLFEAN FOR A VARIANCE TO APPENDIX A, 
SECTION 9.08 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES AT THE PROPERTY 
12123 RHETT DRIVE 
 
Staff stated that no objections were received regarding the project.  



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes – April 25, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 
 

ZBOA recommended that staff review the 50% substantial improvement calculation to 
prevent restricting work done for home safety improvements and to introduce some 
flexibility. City Administrator Gerardo Barrera noted that these type of changes to the 
ordinance are usually by direction of Council. The Administrator will do an internal 
review with staff prior to discussing with Council for additional feedback and 
direction.  
 
A motion was made by Board Member Pratt and seconded by Board Member Belco 
to grant a variance to Appendix A, Section 9.08 of the City’s Code of Ordinances at 
the property 12123 Rhett Drive.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Michelle Belco…………… YES     
David Marshall………….. YES     
Patricia Shuford………… YES 
Josh Pratt.……………….. YES 
Ryan West.………………. YES 

 
 The motion carried 5 - 0 

 
X. ADJOURN 

 
A motion was made by Board Member Pratt and seconded by Board Member 
Marshall to adjourn the meeting at 5:58 p.m.  
 
The motion carried 5 - 0 

 
Approved and accepted on May 15, 2024. 
 

 
 

     ______________________________ 
Patricia Shuford, Vice Chair 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

    ________________________________________________ 
 Gerardo Barrera, City Administrator/ Acting City Secretary 
 



1 
 

 

City of Bunker Hill Village 
Zoning Board of Adjustment  

Agenda Request 
 

 
Agenda Date: May 15, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   IV - V 
 
Subject:  Variance Request  
 
Exhibits:   Application   
 
Presenter(s):  Gerardo Barrera, City Administrator   
  

 

 
 

 

The applicant requests a variance to Appendix A, Section 5.08 B of the City’s Code of Ordinances 
requiring a six-foot separation between the main building and an accessory structure at the property 
11734 Bayhurst to construct a carport.  

§ 5.08. Accessory use regulations. 

The following regulations shall apply to all accessory buildings, structures, and uses:  
A. Limitations on use. An accessory building, structure, or use shall not be rented, shall 

not be used for commercial, or manufacturing purposes, and shall not contain any 
kitchen, living, or sleeping facilities. The foregoing notwithstanding, an accessory 
building or use subordinate to a main building may contain kitchen or living facilities 
for use in conjunction with recreational activities only.  

B. Distance requirements from main building. No wall of an accessory building or use 
shall be located less than six (6) feet from an outside wall of the main building. An 
accessory building or use may be connected to the main building by a covered 
walkway; provided, however, such covered walkway shall not be more than six (6) feet 
in width.  

C. Restrictions on location. Except as specifically permitted in this section or elsewhere in 
this ordinance, an accessory building, structure, or use shall not be erected, 
constructed, installed, placed, or maintained in any required yard. On an interior lot, if 
an accessory building, structure, or use is not attached to or made a part of the main 
building and is located in the rear one-third of the lot, it shall be set back at least ten 
(10) feet from the rear lot line and at least ten (10) feet from each side lot line. On a 
corner lot, if an accessory building, structure, or use is not attached to or made a part of 
the main building and is located in the rear one-third of the lot, it shall be set back at 
least ten (10) feet from the rear lot line; at least ten (10) feet from the interior side yard 
line (the side yard line farthest removed from the side street); and at least twenty (20) 
feet or a distance at least equal to the required depth of that yard of the contiguous lot  

 

Executive Summary 



 
 

which abuts such side street, whichever is greater, from the interior side lot line (the 
side lot line which abuts the side street).  

D. Placement of windows and doors. Windows and doors shall not be allowed on the 
side(s) of accessory structures which have less than the required main structure 
setback. Windows and doors on accessory structures can only face internally to the lot.  

 
 

 
 
Staff recommends the Zoning Board of Adjustment take the following actions: 

1. Hold a public hearing 
2. Discuss and take any desired action  

 
 

 

Recommended Action 



CITY OF BUNKER HILL VILLAGE

APPLICATION FOR

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST

(aJs I -r/iI Of MOOwners Name: Phone:

//7^y 77'^ 3- yMailing Address: Zip:

y>Property Address (If Different):

Action Requested: Variance Appeal Special Exceptions Zoning District B

cTp-z/pc) X-Q-eProject Description and Request:

S'.O^Section of Code at Issue:

Attachments as applicable:
● Site Plan

● Letter of Permit Denial

● Any Additional Infonnation

A fee of $500.00 is requiredfor processing

Signature of Applicant: Date:



icto

Uc

O 5^
^ :

I
2

§ e-
U. 3

<S

'EARS 'EARS



statement of Facts and Reasons tor Adjustment 

The City of Bunker Hill Village ("City") Ordinance that addresses "Secondary Structures" is 

Ordinance Appendix A, Section 5.08 6.08 and requires that a secondary structure be at least 6 

feet from the primary structure. The Ordinance does allow for a 6 foot wide covered 

connection connecting the Accessory Structure to the Primary Structure. The Ordinance reads as 

follows: 
5.08 B 6.08 Accessory use regulations. 

B. Distance requirements from main building. No wall of an accessory building or use 

shall be located less than six (6) feet from an outside wall of the main building. 

An accessory building or use may be connected to the main building by a covered 

walkway; provided, however, such covered walkway shall not be more than six (6) 

feet in width.

This covered walkway most commonly was the long covered walkway from a Primary Structure to 

the Secondary Structure garage/carport in the back of the lot with the covered portion running next 

to and parallel to the driveway. There are plenty of other applications of the walkway, but that I think 

is the most familiar. It would not make sense to ask for or need a wider walkway and this rule did its 

job for most primary and accessory structures. 

The application of the rule in the specific case of the lot at 11734 Bayhurst ("Subject Property") as 

described in more detail below does not make sense, it does not allow for "reasonable use" of the 

Subject Property and, fortunately, the proposed variance to the rule would not affect or impact any 

neighbors, neighborhoods, other citizens or the City. 

I am the owner of the Subject Property and am trying to build a carport. The Subject Property lot is 

the shape of a diamond vs. the shape of a square, which with regard to setbacks, puts it in the small 

minority of lots in the City and, on occasion, can create unnecessary hardship. In this case, the 

application proposes a carport that is within the setback of 1 o feet from the property line, and thus 

in conformity with the Ordinance. For carports and garages Ordinance 5.07 requires 400 square feet 

of floor space capable of parking two reasonably sized cars side by side. This requirement is also 

met and in conformity. As proposed, the carport addition is all within conformity except for one 

item-the walkway between the Primary Structure and Accessory Structure is wider than 6 feet. This 

is because this carport is next to the primary structure, not behind it, as the original and common 

example above. In the current case, there is no rational need for the application of this rule and it 

creates an unnecessary hardship on the owner by restricting any reasonable use of the space 

between the Primary and Accessory Structures. It would be a no mans land, so to speak and there 

is simply nothing that can be done with that space at this point and no one benefits from the literal 

application of this rule. No neighbors, the public, other citizens or the City would be the least bit 

affected by this change. The carport would be built at this location regardless of this Variance as it 

is in conformity except for this portion. There is actually no adjacent neighbor as the lot on the other 

side of the fence is vacant and it only ~5,000 feet and cannot be built on. The closest lot is ~100 feet 

away and the closest structure is ~135 feet away. 

This proposal makes common sense and allows the property owner to have reasonable use of this 

space by making it functional and affects no one at all. 

REDLINED 

MAY 2, 2024

mpack
Line

mpack
Line



CELEBRATING OVER 30 YEARS OF DESIGN INNOVATION
*"0

EARS

SQUARC FOOTaCCS

E1HUA4 Stnjctur

(Ugir MlOdlM dgl4ki^«)

Lhktq

657gorag*

'To
FroAl porch ^6

(/C7<n
124

TOTAL 4,233 »Qi>or« fa«t
o >>

dvAvr'sT' v>
●A a
'o- ~a

■<i o

Ptvrf Qs. E j=
a

e-
I-' 3

<

'■■fo-

'●■-<%,

■'. c

ior j unless noted otherwise

1U6 pfori

rtf». prW

●ist^ 7O0M,«r0«i‘r>9
loMlot' .. ●«, ●

rMu>'w*«rii« (●*>●1

r ^fltanot.

JO'S!

inMEUt, mXXMS io d9t«M

P'dtWOA S«rr*»yerv Jorm E

0'S>'>«9* I* !*»● K
B'M<«t*4 yM» prt0^ I

M«aU0t« Arn«n»w|
mx*964

T'W lOMT^r It

to

<o*v«t

iupgiia **

● o*iU* »●

» ^»>o«o^o«u

t‘tf «*« t«4
OrQIMtlOfl

Poun4Qt>«^.

bvilM* AtiO/or
0<or«s»^«l /●oo'tfno

orscMtas. buitfn9 dvfti^n
ueoriMd

« ddpy« ●l^ty'tf

Cdr«oou«ri0f <i
rcv*)ddt>9*«

atn S«(li«A

Cm* *

.m JCP-
td*i«4

tdMBQMay es'itfo^Mq y**!

ra^dMM kTunMol^r oOpcent to 4a conMAtaio

roowty;En5TCNC (WO SICRT \ »ty

, .. aOtHQ
/ ONCR FRAME SLAB Cn \

/ OAQ£ OMOr rAUAY \

NORTH

LEGAL PgSCRlPTIQN

lot 3, of

Camden Place subdivision'KtSHNC

2AIW aur

SITE PLAN

scole: 1" » l0’-0“

«?wcociCT)eM ncsnxTVKi

4‘«eroM<«d

4 Cy«(«m 4wyM

TOUWC KaCKRV ●< t»N»M

■MmM ir«C»>4

l4
'«««^ Wya^*t»»» B*4(a^'Wi»y, ro^owq

4lt*M( daiiy*^ ^t^4M »4a>*^t

●>9r pgrpoaoi

»'«04'M W<*

Pd4P«'i4«At <4^t'9Cl«

4(*^l«}44 ef t^● ■\V‘
4«v9'i«'

Wa
11734 BA YHURST DRIVE u>

1 » 7
(40' /^.O..W)

20S
>"lJ

CELEBRATING OVER 30 YEARS OF DESIGN INNOVATION 3C^|
& S'*Mi 08/19/22

E/\RS



1 
 

 

City of Bunker Hill Village 
Zoning Board of Adjustment  

Agenda Request 
 

 
Agenda Date: May 15, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   VI - VII 
 
Subject:  Variance Request  
 
Exhibits:   Application   
 
Presenter(s):  Gerardo Barrera, City Administrator   
  

 

 
 

 

The applicant requests a variance to Appendix A, Section 5.06 E of the City’s Code of Ordinances 
prohibiting overhangs and encroachments into yard space at the property 1 Our Lane Trail to install 
a retractable pool awning.  

§ 5.06. Area regulations, size of yards. 

The following regulations shall apply to all yards:  
A. Front yard, standard lot. On a standard lot there shall be a front yard with a depth of at 

least fifty (50) feet. Alongside lot lines within a required front yard, a five-foot-wide 
green space shall be maintained.  

B. Front yard, cul-de-sac lot. A cul-de-sac lot shall abut a portion of the front street line 
which forms the bulb or arc of the cul-de-sac. Such lot shall have a front yard depth of 
at least forty feet (40), and shall complement adjacent homes creating a consistent 
neighborhood look as approved by the zoning official. Alongside lot lines within a 
required front yard, a five-foot-wide green space shall be maintained.  

C. Side yards. There shall be two (2) side yards on each lot. Each side yard shall have a 
depth of at least twenty (20) feet. Alongside lot lines within a required front yard a 
five-foot wide green space shall be maintained.  

D. Rear yard. Each lot shall have a rear yard with a depth of at least twenty-five (25) feet. 
In addition to this requirement, if a two-story main building is hereafter erected, 
constructed, or placed on a lot or if a second story is hereafter added to an existing one-
story main building, the second story of such building shall be set back from the rear 
lot line of the lot on which it is situated a distance of at least forty (40) feet. As used 
herein, the term "second story" shall be deemed to include all portions of the building 
above the point where the top of the floor of the second story intersects or, if extended 
on a horizontal plane, would intersect the wall or roof of such building. Along rear lot 
lines a five-foot-wide green space shall be maintained.  

 

Executive Summary 



 
 
E. Overhang and encroachments into yard space prohibited, with exceptions. No balcony, 

cornice, eave, roof overhang, or protrusion of any kind or character from the walls or 
roof of a building or structure, other than uncovered and unenclosed driveways, 
walkways, steps, and porches, shall extend into or beyond any required yard or 
building line a distance of more than thirty (30) inches.  

F. In the event of a reconstruction of an existing structure (50% or more) as an "In 
Kind/Same Kind" as defined by the City's subdivision ordinance, meaning there is no 
modification to the existing footprint or exterior structural components of the structure, 
the foregoing regulations relating to the size of yards shall not prohibit the 
reconstruction of a single-family residence provided that the reconstruction is in 
compliance with all other provisions of the City's zoning ordinance.  

 
 

 
 
Staff recommends the Zoning Board of Adjustment take the following actions: 

1. Hold a public hearing 
2. Discuss and take any desired action  

 
 

 

Recommended Action 






































	04-25-2024.Minutes.pdf
	§ 9.08. Repairs, modifications, and maintenance.

	4.Agenda Summary.pdf
	§ 5.08. Accessory use regulations.

	6.Agenda Summary.pdf
	§ 5.06. Area regulations, size of yards.

	1 Our Lane Trail Application Packet.pdf
	Corrected Rear Elevation ie existing dormers.pdf
	Scan_1263-01
	Scan_1263-02





